
 

 
 
 

City of Riverton  
Regular Council Meeting 

Tuesday, July 5, 2022 at 7:00 pm 
Riverton City Hall Council Chambers 

816 N Federal Blvd. 
Riverton, WY 82501 

 

                          “Excellence in Service to the Rendezvous City” 
 

At 6:45 P.M. on Tuesday, July 5, 2022, the Finance Committee will meet in the City Hall Council 
Chambers to consider bills to be paid. This meeting is open to the public. 

 
1) Call to order. 
 
2) Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3) Invocation. 
 
4) Roll call: Ward I: Kyle Larson, Dean Peranteaux  

Ward II: Karla Borders, Kristy K. Salisbury 
Ward III: Mike Bailey, Lindsey Cox  

 
5) Declaration of quorum. 

 
6) Approval of the Agenda. 

 
7) Communication from the Floor – Citizen’s Comments. 
 
8) Consent Agenda:   

• Approval of the Minutes – June 21, 2022 Regular Council Meeting. 
• Approval of the Minutes – June 28, 2022 Special Council Meeting. 
• Approval of the Minutes – July 5, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting. 
• Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – July 5, 2022. 
• Open Container Permit Application: Livestock Liquors, Friday Night Cruise– July 15, 2022, Bar 

10, Friday Night Cruise – July 15, 2022. 
 

9) Sunset Drive Improvement Project, Phase I: Consideration of Change Order No. 1.  
 

10) Consideration of Ordinance No. 22-005, 3rd and Final Reading: RMC Title 17 Zoning Definition. 
 

11) Consideration of Ordinance No. 22-006, 3rd and Final Reading: R4 Residential Zoning Revision. 
 

12) Consideration of Resolution No. 1451: Wyoming CLASS.  
 

13) Public Hearing & Consideration of Resolution No. 1452: TAP Grant Application. 
 

Reports and Comments: 
14) Council Committee Reports and Council Members’ Roundtable. 
15) City Administrator’s Report. 
16) Mayor’s Comments. 
17) Executive Session – if needed. 
18) Adjourn. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 June 21, 2022 

 RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 
Minutes of the 

Regular Council Meeting 
Held June 21, 2022 

7:00 PM 
 

The regular meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor 
Richard P. Gard at 7:00 p.m.  City Council Members present were: Lindsey Cox, Mike Bailey, Dean Peranteaux, 
Kyle Larson, and Kristy K. Salisbury. Veterans Warren Hess and Chuck Arndt led the pledge of allegiance; and 
Council Member Bailey conducted the invocation. 
 
Roll call was conducted. Mayor Gard declared a quorum of the Council. 
  
City Staff present were: City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson, Airport Division Manager Paul 
Griffin, Police Chief Eric Murphy, Finance Director Mia Harris, Community Development Director Mike Miller, 
and Administrative Assistant Tisha Tuttle.  
 
Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Salisbury to 
approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Communication from the Floor/Response to Citizen’s Comments – Mayor Gard commended the Veteran’s 
Hall for the Avenue of Flags that were displayed on Main Street and Federal Boulevard on Flag Day.  Veterans 
Warren Hess and Chuck Arndt approached the Council and offered background to their service to the City.  FFA 
and 4H members, Jackson Hill, Dani Santee, Emma Hill, and Abby Santee approached the Council and requested 
permission to fly the FFA and 4H Flags during Fremont County Fair week, which is July 29, 2022 – August 8, 
2022.  It was the consensus of the Council to allow the flags during the requested time period.  Greg Tallabas 
addressed the Council regarding a Neighborhood Watch program.  It was the consensus of the Council to support 
efforts towards such a program. 
  
Consent Agenda – City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson read the consent agenda items by 
title only: Approval of the Minutes – June 7, 2022 Regular Council Meeting; Approval of the Minutes – June 7, 
2022 Executive Session; Approval of the Minutes – June 14, 2022 Special Council Meeting; Approval of the 
Minutes – June 21, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting; Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – 
June 21, 2022: claims to be paid in the amount of $544,263.87, payroll & liabilities for 6/3/2022 in the amount 
of $219,986.35, for a total of $764,250.22; Approval of the Municipal Court Report for the month of May 2022; 
Open Container Permit Applications: Baked on Broadway, Taste of Riverton/Summer Concert Series @ City 
Park – June 24, 2022, July 22, 2022, & August 19, 2022, 4:00 pm – 11:00 pm; and Baked on Broadway, Happy 
Days @ City Park – July 8, 2022, 4:30 pm – 10:00 pm & July 9, 2022, 10:00 am – 7:00 pm. Council Member 
Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion passed 
unanimously with Council Member Peranteaux abstaining from Wyonet and Travelling computers claims, and 
Council Member Bailey abstaining from the Baileys Enterprise claims on the claims approval list. 
 
Wind River Visitor Council Board Appointment: Julie Buller – Mayor Gard discussed the Wind River 
Visitors Council and the benefit of having a passionate liaison like Julie Buller willing to sit on the board. Council 
Member Bailey moved, seconded by Council Member Salisbury to approve the reappointment of Julie Buller to 
the Wind River Visitors Council for a three year term.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 22-005, 2nd Reading: RMC Title 17 Zoning Definition – City Clerk/Human 
Resource Director Kristin Watson read Ordinance No. 22-005 by title only.  This ordinance would define “open 
parking garage” in title 17 of the Riverton Municipal Code. Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by 
Council Member Cox to adopt Ordinance No. 22-005 on second reading. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 22-006, 2nd Reading: R4 Residential Zoning Revision – City Clerk/Human 
Resource Director Kristin Watson read Ordinance No. 22-006 by title only. This ordinance would amend Riverton 
Municipal Code (RMC) 17.40.020 “Lot Area” and RMC 17.40.030 “Height and Floor Area”. Council Member 
Bailey moved, seconded by Council Member Cox to adopt Ordinance No. 22-006 on second reading. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding: WYDOT for Commercial Air Service – Airport Division 
Manager reported on the existing contract and the pending amendment that would update the term of the current 
MOU and scope of services. Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Bailey to 
approve Amendment 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Wyoming Department of 
Transportation (WYDOT) and the City of Riverton (City). Motion passed unanimously.  
 

2



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 June 21, 2022 

Council Committee Reports & Council Members’ Roundtable – Council Member Bailey mentioned the 
Avenue of Flags on Flag Day and how beautiful it looked. Council Member Peranteaux mentioned the lights on 
the north end of Federal that look real nice also thanked the Veterans Hall and Avenue of Flags group for their 
dedication. Council Member Larson attended the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District meeting. Council 
Member Salisbury attended the Chamber meeting and mentioned the success of the Indian National Rodeo put 
on at the Fairgrounds by the Wind River Casino.  
 
Mayor’s Comments – Mayor Gard Mayor Gard reported on attending the Wyoming Association of 
Municipalities (WAM) conference. They Mayor thanked Animal Control Officer Shannon Sanderson for her 
dedicated work and coordination. Mayor Gard confirmed that the Special Council Meeting on June 28, 2022 will 
begin at 5:30 pm in Council Chambers.  
 
Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gard adjourned the Regular 
Council Meeting at 7:55 p.m.  There was no objection from the Council. 
  
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING  
 
                
          Richard P. Gard 

Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 
 
Publication Date:  

3



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 1 June 29, 2021 

RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 
Minutes of the 

Special Council Meeting 
Held June 28, 2022 

5:30 PM 
 

The regular meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor 
Richard P. Gard at 5:30 p.m.  City Council Members present were Karla Borders, Lindsey Cox, Mike Bailey, Dean 
Peranteaux, Kyle Larson, and Kristy Salisbury. Council Member Salisbury led the pledge of allegiance; and Mayor 
Gard conducted the invocation.  
  
City Staff present: City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson, City Administrator Tony Tolstedt, Public 
Works Director Kyle Butterfield, Police Detective Eric Smits, Finance Director Mia Harris, Community Development 
Director Michael Miller, and Administrative Assistant Tisha Tuttle. 
 
Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to approve the 
agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Consideration of Resolution No. 1450: Adoption of Fiscal Year 21-22 Budget Amendment – Finance Director 
Mia Harris presented Resolution No. 1450 for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget amendment. City Clerk/Human 
Resource Director Kristin Watson read Resolution No. 1450 by title only. Council Member Peranteaux moved, 
seconded by Council Member Bailey to approve Resolution No. 1450. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mayors Comments – Mayor Gard reported that he received an anonymous note from a citizen who noticed that there 
was a flag pole lighting issue at the Blue Star Memorial, as well as the sprinklers not appearing to work.  Public Works 
Director Kyle Butterfield stated that he would look into the complaint.  Mayor Gard also requested the Council Member 
Borders be added to the PAWS for Life Board meeting communications. 
 
Mike Bailey commended city crews for their efforts in cleaning up rocks on City roadways.  
  
Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gard adjourned the Special Council 
meeting at 5:44 p.m. There was no objection from the Council. 
 
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING  
 
                
          Richard P. Gard 

Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 
 
Publication Date: July 13, 2021 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Brendan P. Thoman, City Engineer 
 
THROUGH: Kyle J. Butterfield, Public Works Director  
  Anthony Tolstedt, City Administrator  
 
DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Sunset Drive Improvement Project – Change Order #1 
 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council approve Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $50,640.00 for 
additional work performed in the intersection of Broadway and Sunset on the Sunset Drive Phase I 
Improvement Project.   
 
Background:  The City Council awarded Phase I of the Sunset Drive Improvement Project to 71 
Construction on March 1, 2022.  The project improves water, sewer, and storm infrastructure between 
Federal Boulevard and Valley Circle.  It also includes curb and gutter, ADA, and pavement upgrades.  
Finally, it replaces the Armstrong Irrigation Lateral. 
 
On May 26, 2022, it was discovered while working in the intersection of Broadway and Sunset that an 
unmarked fiber optic bank was located in the new alignment of the Armstrong Lateral.  The fiber optic 
utility company (Century Link) did not locate the conflicting lines during the planning and design phase 
of the project, nor at the start of construction.  The conflict was significant enough to halt several aspects 
of the project and require altered engineered plans in order to move forward. 
 
The design engineer, William H Smith and Associates, Inc., immediately responded to the discovered 
utility conflict and produced four pages of revised plans to realign the irrigation lateral and relocate storm 
drain structure.  The new plans were given to the contractor June 1st.  After reviewing the revised plan 
sheets and several on-site meetings, 71 Construction proposed a draft change order related to the utility 
conflict on June 22nd.  A final, negotiated, change order covering the cost to re-locate the irrigation and 
subsequent storm drain lines was produced June 23rd.   
 
Discussion:   71 Construction is asking for payment for structures that will need to be moved to avoid the 
irrigation/fiber optic conflict down Sunset Drive.  The attached change order itemizes the requested 
amount.  In brief, the items include: 
 
 Remove and replacement of a storm drain manhole in order to locate it in the correct alignment. 
 Backfill of trenching around the discovered fiber optic lines including concrete slurry. 
 Installation of couplings to go around the irrigation pipe as it transitions to the new alignment. 
 Installation of an extension of the storm drain manhole as the manhole is lowered per new design. 
 Additional surveying and field staking. 
 Lowering of waterline that was discovered to be buried too shallow.   

17



 Additional bonding by the prime contractor. 
 Additional traffic control in the intersection. 
 Additional time by the prime contractor overseeing and maintaining the job as well as additional 

allowed days on the project. 
 Additional quality control/quality assurance testing during the additional work.   

 
After reviewing the original change order request and discussing it further with 71 Construction, the final 
change order represents a 60% reduction in price from the original.  Century link has been on-site and 
involved in resolving the conflicts created by their unmarked utility.  Their contractor, Pauley 
Construction, worked to expose and move lines that were shown on the plans, as well as expose and raise 
the lines not shown.  They also took responsibility and repaired the irrigation line when a leak was found 
during construction while the fiber optic conduits were moved.    
 
Budget Impact:  The signed contract to 71 Construction for the Sunset Irrigation Improvement Project is 
in the amount of 2,232,657.  This change order represents a 2.3% increase to the total project.  There are 
sufficient funds available in the 1% Optional Tax account to cover the necessary increase. 
 

 

Alignment for the 
Armstrong Lateral 

Unmarked utility conflict 
of fiber optic bank 

18



PHASE I - SUNSET DRIVE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT CITY OF RIVERTON, WY 

CHANGE ORDER 

PROJECT: 
Sunset Drive Improvement Project - Phase I 

DATE OF ISSUANCE: 
6-23-2022

---------------

OWNER'S NAME: 
OWNER'S ADDRESS: 

City of Riverton 
816 N Federal BL VD 
Riverton, WY 82501 

CONTRACTOR'S NAME: 71 Construction 
CONTRACTOR'S ADDRESS: 8?0 Lough Drive 

Riverton, WY 82501 

TYPE OF CONTRACT: 
Bid - Build 

-------------------------

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents. 

Description: Costs associated with change of alignment for Storm Sewer and Irrigation Lines 

Purpose of Change Order: To cover the cost of items to be removed and replaced and additional 
items introduced in the project. 

Attachments: (List documents supporting change) 71 Construction Budget Proposal - C.O. #1 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: 

Original Contract Price $2,232,657.00 

Previous Change Orders No. to No. _O_ 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order 

$2,232,657.00 
Net Increase (decrease) of this Change Order 

$50,640.00 
Contract Price with all approved Change Orders 

$2,283,297.00 

RECOMMENDED: APPROVED: 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME: 

Original Contract Time 180 days 

Net Change from previous Change Orders 3 

Contract Time prior to this Change Order 

180 days 
Net Increase (decrease) of this Change Order 

21 days 
Contract Time with all approved Change Orders 

201 days 

APPROVED: 

by:________ by: ______ _ by: _______ _ 
City Project Representative Owner Contractor 

CO-I 

19



JOB DESCRIPTION

 DATE

TO: NAME

ADDRESS

PHONE FAX

E-MAIL

Yes X No Bond Included Yes No X

Yes No X Mobilization Included Yes X No

Yes X No Traffic Control Included Yes  X No

ITEM

ESTIMATE 

QUANTITY UNIT ESTIMATE TOTAL

1 1 EA 3,750.00          

-                   

4 1 LS 6,250.00          

-                   

5 10 EA 6,250.00          

-                   

6 1 EA 2,500.00          

-                   

7 1 LS 4,465.00          

-                   

8 1 LS 5,630.00          

-                   

9 1 LS 2,250.00          

-                   

10 1 LS 6,851.00          

-                   

11 1 LS 10,577.00        

-                   

12 5.4 CY 1,242.00          

-                   

13 1 LS 875.00             

-                   

14 21 ea -                   

-                   

Scheduled for performance between 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this work.     If you have any questions please don't hesitate
to call me.

Bid Submitted by: Accepted by: Date:

230.00$         

Removal of 12" Storm Sewer will be paid at the Installation price of $87.00/LF: Installation of 280 LF of 24" 

50,640.00$             

Additional Traffic Control

Additional Calendar Days to add to the Project

Additional Mobilization  10,577.00$     

Additional Density Testing 875.00$         

Flow Fill in Intersection

EST. #

Due to market volitility on materials, this quote is valid for 7 days and then subject to change.

625.00$         Furnish and Install 24"x18" Couplings

2,500.00$      

4,465.00$      

Removal of 24" Irrigation Line will be paid at the old Install bid schedule price of $117.00/LF:

Irrigation Will be paid at Select Fill + Foundation fill price per\LF: Irrigation Bedding Material Will be paid at

NOTES:

71 Construction

820 Lough Drive, Riverton, WY 82501

Sunset Improvements Phase 1

Change Order #1 Revision #4

CONTACT:City of Riverton

6/30/2022

Brendan

Budget Proposal

Phone 307-856-7171  Fax 307-856-7191

Additional Bond 2,250.00$      

6,851.00$      

Backfill Trenches Due to Moving Utilities 6,250.00$      

Lower Waterline in Intersection 5,630.00$      

Dustin Welch EST

Furnish and Install Barrell Section and Cut

 

Additional field staking and Office Computations

By signing below, I agree to pay all reasonable collection fees, attorneys’ fees and court costs necessary to collect my account should it become past due, 

plus a monthly service charge of 1.5% per month on the unpaid balance of the account. 

 SUMMER 2022

3X the Linear Foot price for each Liner Foot installed for 280' and then Re-evaluate:

Total

Remove Storm Manhole and Lower as Needed

As Per Plans and Specifications

Including Addenda # 

Tax Exempt

DESCRIPTION

CELL

UNIT PRICE

3,750.00$      

20



BH #5BHHH #55BBHHHH ##55555##HHBB ####555HHHHBBH #5BH #5HHHH ##5HHBBBBBBBHBBBHHBHHHHHHHHHHH #######5#5#55#55555555

MH IRRIG-4
STA: 46+30.97
RIM: 4979.25, 8.01' L

MH #1
STA: 47+76.39, 16.27' R
RIM: 4977.29

W. SUNSET DRIVEWWWWWWW.W. W.W. SW. S. SSSSUSUSUSUUNUNUNUNNSNSNSNSSESESESEETETETETTT DT DT DDDDRDRDRDRRIRIVRIVRIVIVVVEVEVEVEEEETTNSESSSSEUNUUUNSS

R
AI

N
BO

W
 D

R
.

N
. B

R
O

AD
W

AY
 A

VEAAA
O

RR
O

RRRBBRBBBB
NNNNN

RRRRRRRBBBBB
NNNNNN

RRRRBBB
NNN

OO
RRRRRRBBBBB

NNNN
O

EEVVEVVVAAVAAA
YY

A
YYYYAAYY

W
AAA

WWW
A

WWW
D

WW
DDDAADAAA

OO
A

OO
EEEEEVVVVVAAAAAAAAAA

YYYYAYYYYAAAAA
WWWWWWWW

DDDDDAAAAAAAAA
OOOOO

EEEEEVVVVVVAAAAA
YYYYAYYAYAAAAA

WWWWWWWWWWWWW
DDDDDDAAAAAAAA

OOOOOO
EEEEEEEVVVVVVVVAVAVAAAAAAAAAA

YYYYYYYYYYAAAAAA
WWWWWWWWWW

DDDDDDDDAAAAAAAA
OOOOO

AAAAAA

+00+++000000++++00++000000000+00++00000+00++00000+00+000+00++00000+00+000 45+00444444454454555+5+++0000045+0044555++++0+0000000000045+0044555+++0000045+0044555+++0000045+0044555+++00000 46+004666++++0000046+004666++++0000046+0044444646466+6++++00000046+0046666++++0+000000000046+004666++++00000 47+0044477+0444777++00007444744 000004477774447+007++0000077 0000000+0077 00000+++47+00000747+00000747+000007 000000000000+0000888888888888888888484484484444444444 + 000++++0048+000+0+48+00848+008888 00+888 000088+++++48+48848+448448884444448+0048848+488 +++9+9+99994944444949444444444944494449999444999949+44999+49+4444999+4494449449999999949+44999+++49+449999++49+44999+++0000000000000 44445 004455 00000444444 +++++++++

EEEEEEEEE

++++++9999499444444400000000++++++8+88884444 ++ 9999999944444444444444440000000000000008888888+000048+84 + ++49+44499+++++++++++++0000000++48+884 ++ ++++49+444999+++++++++++++++++++++++++++ 0000000000 99999999444444444444444444444444444448484888888888888888888888++88+++++++++++++++++++0000+0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 44444444444444444444444444949444449949949999999999999949999999+++9+99+9+++99++++99+

STORM MH #2
STA: 47+56.28
RIM: 4977.76, 3.74' L

CB #3
STA: 47+39.60

RIM: 4976.69, 49.35' L

CB #4
STA: 47+40.76

RIM: 4976.78, 49.44' R

@
 -0.51%%1%%

@@@@
-000

5151%%%
@@@@@

000
1511%%%%

@@@@
0

5511%%%
@@@

000
5555

%%%

49 LF 12"
112

944949
LLFLF

1122
4449 9999

FFLFF
11122""

49
LF

12
44444999

LLFFF
1111

@@@@@ @@

HDPE PIPE
HDHHDPEPEE

PPPIPEEE
DDPPE E PIPIPEPE

HDDDPPPE
P

PE
HHHHDDDD

E
PPP

PPEEPEE
DHDDHD

EEPEE

-44MH IRRIGMMH IRRRRIGG
 LL+30.97, 8.01'30 97 8 01''' 46+30.9746+3STA:STA: +30.973+30.973
2525979 299 22RIM: 4979.25RR MM 4497 2979.252979.252
W)WWN: 4974.10 24"(W49774 10 244"(WV INN WN: 4974.10 24"(WN 4INV ININNVV NN: 4974.10 24"(W4V INNN: 4974.10 24"(W4V INN
E)EUT: 4974.00 24"(ETT: 499744 000 244"(V OUUU EUT: 4974.00 24"(V OUUUT: 4974.00 24"(INV OUNNVV OOUUUT: 4974.00 24"(V OUUUUT: 4974.00 24"(V OUUU

@ 1.28%@@@ 11.2288%% @ -1.28%@@@@ -1.2288%%424 LF 24"44242244 LLFLFF 22444422244 @ 1.28%@@@ 1 228%%@ 1.28%@@@ 1 228%%" @@@@424 LF 24"4244 LF 244"""" @" @@@424 LF 24"442244 LLFF 244"""" @@@@424 LF 24"4244 LF 244""" @ -1.28%@@@ -1 288%424 LF 24"4224 LFF 24444 " @ -1.28%" @@@@ --11 22288%8%%%@@@ 11 288%%424 LF 24"42244 LFF 22444"44 LLF 22244"""" @ -1.28%@@@ -1 288%%424 LF 24"4224 LFF 24444 @ -1.28%@@@ -1 288%%424 LF 24"4224 LFF 24444 " @@@@424 LF 24"4244 LF 244"""

-1.02%1 002%22%%-1 000-1.02%0-1.02%0

-1.34%1 3 %-1.34%34%-1.34%3-1.34%3

-1.09%-1 0-1.09%9%%-1.09%-1.09%
32%32-1.3-1 33 %32%-1 3332%-1 3332%2%%-1 3332%-1 33

PV
I:4

5+
50

.0
PP

5
5

0
VI

:4
5+

50
.0

5
VI

:4
5+

50
.0

0
5

5
000

VI
:4

5+
50

.0
5

0
VI

:4
5+

50
.0

5
0

EL
EV

: 4
98

0.
5

EE
EE

:
9

0
LE

V:
 4

98
0.

51
:

99
00

LE
V:

 4
98

0.
5

:
LE

V:
 4

98
0.

5
:

LE
V:

 4
98

0.
5

:

PV
I:4

7+
25

.0
VV

44
5

VI
:4

7+
25

.0
0

+
5

0
VI

:4
7+

25
.0

EL
EV

: 4
97

8
LL

1
VV

44
7

LE
V:

 4
97

8.
17

4
7

.
77

LE
V:

 4
97

8.
1

4
LE

V:
 4

97
8.

1
4

PV
I:4

8+
50

.0
PPV

44
VI

:4
8+

50
.0

VVI
:4

8+
50

.0
0

V
+

00
VI

:4
8+

50
.0

VVI
:4

8+
50

.0
V EL

EV
: 4

97
6.

8
EE

VV
4

7
LE

V:
 4

97
6.

8
LE

V:
 4

97
6.

81
4

7
88

LE
V:

 4
97

6.
8

LE
V:

 4
97

6.
8

MH #1HH #MHMMMH
9, 16.27' R9 16 27 R: 47+76.347+76 399: 47STA: 47STA:: 47: 47

77.297 22977.27RIM: 4977.2RR MM 44977777.2777.27
3 10"(N)33 10 N55553 5INV IN:4968.53 NNVV INN 499688 553 553 5

0"(S)0 S)9 10"(S99 1INV IN:4968.6NNVV INN 499688 66 0"(S
"(E)"(E8.33 10"(E)8 333 100INV OUT:4968NNVV OOUUTT 499688 "(E)

F OF 10"  SDR-35 PVC,  S = -6.81%127 LF OF 10"  SDR-35 PVC,  S = -6 F OF 10"  SDR-35 PVC,  S = -6F OF 10"  SDR-35 PVC,  S = -6

@ %@@@ %% @ -0.96%4  446 LF 24"444466 LF444444646 66 LLLFF F 22244  @@@ 00.9966%%%@ %@@ %%@ %@@ %%" @446 LF 24"4446 LFF 224" @@" @446 LF 24"444466 LLFF 2244" @@" @446 LF 24"4446 LFF 224" @@ @ -0.96%446 LF 24"F4446 LLF 224 @@@ 00 996%%%%%6%%96%%96696990 9-00-0@ -@@@@" @@4"44"424222F 2F446 LFF4446 LLFF 22244"4" @@@@@ --000 999699666%%%% @ -0.96%446 LF 24"F4446 LLF 224 @@@ 00 996%%% @ -0.96%446 LF 24"F4446 LLF 224 @@@ 00 996%%%" @446 LF 24"4446 LFF 224" @@

PROPOSED HDPE PIPEPPRROOPPOOSSEEDD HDPEE PPIPPED

PROPOSED HDPE PIPEPROPOSED HDPE PIPEHH

EPEPIEDP
%%%%%%%%%%%%5%5%55%255255522222222.22.111@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@ 11 2222555%%%%%%5%5%555525252222.2.2..21.1.1111@ -@ @@@@@@@@@@ @88881888818111F 11F F FFFLFLFLLLLLL3 L3 L3 383 33383838828282288282228222228288888333 3 LLLFLFFF F 11188888   @@@@@@ 11..222252555%%%%5%555222.22.111@@@@@@@@@ 1 225%%%%5%555222.22.111@@@@@@@@@ 1 225%%283 LF 18" @822833 LF 188" @@@283 LF 18" @88282222288833 LLFF 188" @@@283 LF 18" @822833 LF 188" @@@ 5%%.252283 LF 18" @ -18228883 LFF 188 @@@ 1 2255%%%%5%%.25%21 22283 LF 18" @ -182288833 LFF 11888"" @@@@ --11 2222525%5%%%%%%5%%.252283 LF 18" @ -18228883 LFF 188 @@@ 1 2255%%%5%%.252283 LF 18" @ -18228883 LFF 188 @@@ 1 2255%%283 LF 18" @822833 LF 188" @@@

5 LF 12" @ -0.45%2 @@@ 0 455%%25 LF 12" @ -0.45255 LF 12" @ -0.45555 LLF 1225 LF 12" @ -0.45225 LF 12" @ -0.4522

STORM MH #2TTOORRMM MMHH ##22MSTSTSTTSTT
: 47+56.28, 3.74' L4477+556 228 3 774' L+STA: 47STTAA:: 47: 47

77.767 7767RIM: 4977.7R MM 44977777.7777.77
75 12"(S)75 12"(S)INV IN:4974.75 INV IN 4974 799 75 775 7

2"(N)2"(NN)INV IN:4974.75 12"(NNNVV N 449744 7759 2"(N
"(E)E)INV OUT:4974.00 18"(E)NNVV OOUUTT 4499744 000 8: "(E)

N
EW

 C
AT

C
H

 B
AS

IN
 #

4
WW

CCC
TT

BBAA
NN

###
ST

A:
 4

7+
40

.7
6,

 4
9.

44
' R

TTAA
44

++
66

44
44

'
G

R
AT

E 
EL

: 4
97

6.
78

GG
AA

EE
EE

99
66

88
IN

V 
IN

 (W
): 

49
75

.0
0

NN
WW

99
00

PROPOSED HDPE PIPEPROPOSED HDPERR EE

PROPOSED HDPE PIPEPPRROOPPOOSSEEDD HHDDPPEE PIPPEEE

SU
N

SE
T 

D
R

IV
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 - 

PH
A

SE
 1

SU
N

SE
T 

D
R

IV
E 

- S
TA

. 4
4+

00
 T

O
 4

9+
00

Pl
an

 &
 P

ro
fil

e 
Sh

ee
ts

SHEET NO.

TH
IS

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 A

LL
 S

O
U

R
C

E 
FI

LE
S,

AN
D

 T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 C

O
N

C
EP

TS
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, A

R
E

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
W

IL
LI

AM
 H

. S
M

IT
H

 &
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S

(W
H

S)
, A

N
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

 O
R

 U
SE

D
 IN

AN
Y 

FO
R

M
, I

N
 P

AR
T 

O
R

 W
H

O
LE

, A
SI

D
E 

FR
O

M
 T

H
IS

PR
O

JE
C

T 
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
TH

E 
W

R
IT

TE
N

 A
U

TH
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 O

F
W

H
S.

 D
IG

IT
AL

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

S
O

F 
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

AR
E

U
TI

LI
ZE

D
 A

T 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 R

IS
K 

O
F 

TH
E 

U
SE

R
.  

O
R

IG
IN

AL
SE

AL
ED

 A
N

D
 S

IG
N

ED
 C

O
PI

ES
O

F 
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

AR
E

O
N

 F
IL

E 
AT

 W
H

S 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
U

PO
N

 R
EQ

U
ES

T
FO

R
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
AN

D
 V

ER
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

.

++++++++++++++++++ +++++++++++++++

0

0
SCALE IN FEET

VERT

HORZ 20 40

5 10

EX 8" PVC WATEEEXEXX X 888"8" " PPPVPVVCVCC C W WWWAWAATATATT

EX
 1

0"
 S

SSS
010

XEXE
SSSSSS

00111
XXX

SSS
001

XEE
SSSS

11
XXXE

SSS

EX 10" SS
EXEX

10
SSSS

EE
000

SSSS
EEEXXX

100" SSSS
EXXXX

1000
SSS

EX - 24" IRREX - 24" IRREX - 24" IRR

EXISTING 24" IRRIGATION PIPE TO BE ABANDONED IN
PLACE, FILLED WITH 1 SACK EXCAVATABLE SLURRY
AND CAPPED AT PIPE ENDS

22

EXISTING MANHOLE TO BE ABANDONED IN PLACE,
SEE DETAIL B6, SHEET C-50633

33 2222

NEW HANDICAP RAMPS, SEE DETAIL C3, SHEET
C-503, SEE SHEET I-1018

87 78

87 78

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING STORM SEWER
CATCH BASINS, MANHOLE AND PIPE - SEE
INTERSECTION SHEET I-101 FOR ADDITIONAL
ROADWAY DESIGN INFORMATION

44

44

44

16

36 2 6
TYPICAL TYPICAL

22

4 5
TYPICAL

INSTALL TRUNCATED DOMES, SEE DETAIL A4,
SHEET C-504, SEE SHEET I-1017

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CURB &
GUTTER, SEE DETAIL A1, ON SHEET C-501.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CONCRETE
SIDEWALK, SEE DETAIL B3, ON SHEET C-503.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY, SEE DETAIL A2, ON SHEET C-502.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

3

2

1

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT, SEE
TYPICAL SECTION TS1, ON SHEET C-001.4

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT,
SEE TYPICAL SECTION TS2, ON SHEET C-001.5

SAW-CUT FULL DEPTH FOR A CLEAN VERTICAL
JOINT. (CONCRETE) SAW-CUT SHALL BE MADE
AT THE CLOSEST EXISTING JOINT WHERE
POSSIBLE.

6

NOTE:
SANITARY SEWER MAIN LENGTHS AND SLOPES
ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF MANHOLES.

NOTE:
ALL MANHOLE PIPE PENETRATIONS SHALL BE
SDR-35 PVC, SEE DETAIL C6, SHEET C-506 FOR
EXISTING PIPE CONNECTIONS OUTSIDE OF
MANHOLE.

AA EXISTING PIPE CONNECTION - OUTSIDE
MANHOLE - SEE DETAIL C6, SHEET C-506

BB

CC

EXISTING MANHOLE TO BE REMOVED IN IT'S
ENTIRETY AND DISPOSED OF OFF SITE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LINE
CONNECTION - SEE DETAIL A6, SHEET C-506
(TYPICAL OF ALL) SEE SANITARY SEWER
CONSTRUCTION NOTES, 2 THROUGH 6 ON
SHEET G-002

5

EXISTING CONCRETE ROADWAY
SURFACING (TYP)

44

44

EXISTING CONCRETE ROADWAY
SURFACING (TYP)

AA

AA

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MAIN, INSTALL 52 L.F. 10" PVC AT
THE SAME GRADE AS EXISTING

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MAIN, INSTALL 100 L.F. 10" PVC AT
THE SAME GRADE AS EXISTING

BB

SEE SHEET I-101 FOR INFORMATION
RELATED TO TRAFFIC BOX AND CONDUIT
INSTALLATION.

9

9

9

44

TYP OF 2 TYP OF 2

TYP OF 2TYP OF 2

21

BANK OF 12 F.O.
CONDUITS 2 FT
BELOW GRADE

CONFLICTING
GAS LINE, TO BE
LOWERED

BANK OF 15 CONDUITS
- TO BE DUG BACK
AND SPREAD

APPROXIMATE
CONDUIT
LOCATIONS

ORIGINAL
PROJECT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA. 44+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET C-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET C-103

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA. 49+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS#6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS#7

bthoman
Polygonal Line

bthoman
Callout
BANK OF 12 F.O. CONDUITS 2 FT BELOW GRADE

bthoman
Callout
CONFLICTING GAS LINE, TO BE LOWERED

bthoman
Callout
BANK OF 15 CONDUITS - TO BE DUG BACK AND SPREAD

bthoman
Rectangle

bthoman
Rectangle

bthoman
Callout
APPROXIMATE CONDUIT LOCATIONS

bthoman
Line

bthoman
Text Box
ORIGINAL PROJECT PLAN



BH #5H ##BBHBHH H ##5##55

47+004 + 0++47+007 00000747+00047+00047+000 48+0000000+0000048+4488888+000+00048+ 49+0099+0049+00499+0049+0044449999++0044499949+00499++00000000049+00499+00888+++48 004444444 44444449 0049 00004848 0044484488 0000

SU
N

SE
T 

D
R

IV
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 - 

PH
A

SE
 1

IN
TE

R
SE

C
TI

O
N

 - 
B

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y 
&

 S
U

N
SE

T
Pl

an
 &

 P
ro

fil
e 

Sh
ee

ts

SHEET NO.

TH
IS

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 A

LL
 S

O
U

R
C

E 
FI

LE
S,

AN
D

 T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 C

O
N

C
EP

TS
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, A

R
E

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
W

IL
LI

AM
 H

. S
M

IT
H

 &
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S

(W
H

S)
, A

N
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

 O
R

 U
SE

D
 IN

AN
Y 

FO
R

M
, I

N
 P

AR
T 

O
R

 W
H

O
LE

, A
SI

D
E 

FR
O

M
 T

H
IS

PR
O

JE
C

T 
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
TH

E 
W

R
IT

TE
N

 A
U

TH
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 O

F
W

H
S.

 D
IG

IT
AL

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

S
O

F 
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

AR
E

U
TI

LI
ZE

D
 A

T 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 R

IS
K 

O
F 

TH
E 

U
SE

R
.  

O
R

IG
IN

AL
SE

AL
ED

 A
N

D
 S

IG
N

ED
 C

O
PI

ES
O

F 
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

AR
E

O
N

 F
IL

E 
AT

 W
H

S 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
U

PO
N

 R
EQ

U
ES

T
FO

R
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
AN

D
 V

ER
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

.

SCALE IN FEET

0

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CURB &
GUTTER, SEE DETAIL A1, ON SHEET C-501.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CONCRETE
SIDEWALK, SEE DETAIL B3, ON SHEET C-503.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

2

1

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT,
SEE TYPICAL SECTION TS2, ON SHEET C-001.5

SAW-CUT FULL DEPTH FOR A CLEAN VERTICAL
JOINT. (CONCRETE) SAW-CUT SHALL BE MADE
AT THE CLOSEST EXISTING JOINT WHERE
POSSIBLE.

6

AA EXISTING PIPE CONNECTION - OUTSIDE
MANHOLE - SEE DETAIL C6, SHEET C-506

15 30
PROPOSED GRADE
(ADD 4900.00)X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXX

XXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXX

XXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXX

FL

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT, SEE
TYPICAL SECTION TS1, ON SHEET C-001.4

16

16

1 6

1 616

1 616

XX

X XX

X

X

20' R @ TBC20' R @ TBC

20' R @ TBC 20' R @ TBC

2

2

2

3

22

2

45

5

6

6

AA

AA

INTERSECTION GRADES

X

TYPE "B" PULL BOX
4" SCH. 80 PVC CONDUIT

NOTES:
1. PULL BOXES FOR FUTURE TRAFFIC SIGNAL WIRING TO BE

REINFORCED-POLYMER CONCRETE OR MOLDED HIGH-DENSITY
POLYETHYLENE.

2. COVERS TO BE OF REINFORCED-POLYMER CONCRETE ON A
NONSKID SURFACE AND ARE TO INCLUDE 2 RECESSED HEX-HEAD
BOLT LOCK DOWNS AND TWO LIFT SPOTS.

3. BOXES AND COVERS ARE TO BE GRAY IN COLOR AND MEET H-20
LOAD SPECIFICATIONS.

4. TYPE "B" PULL BOX - MEASURING APPROXIMATELY 13in x 24in x 18in
AND DESIGNATED TYPE B1730.

5. EXISTING TRAFFIC BOXES AND CONDUIT SHALL BE REMOVED AND
DISPOSED OF OFF SITE. (NONE OF THE EXISTING SYSTEM SHALL BE
RE-USED).

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY, SEE DETAIL A2, ON SHEET C-502.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

3

2

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

22

FIBER OPTIC
LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.94

bthoman
Callout
FIBER OPTIC LINES



BH #5

MH IRRIG-4
STA: 46+30.97
RIM: 4979.25, 8.01' L

MH #1
STA: 47+76.39, 16.27' R
RIM: 4977.29

W. SUNSET DRIVE

R
AI

N
BO

W
 D

R
.

N
. B

R
O

AD
W

AY
 A

VE

+00 45+00 46+00 47+00 48+00 49+

STORM MH #2
STA: 47+56.33
RIM: 4977.80, 2.01' R

CB #3
STA: 47+39.60

RIM: 4976.69, 49.35' L

CB #4
STA: 47+40.76

RIM: 4976.78, 49.44' R

54 LF 12" @
 -0.46%

H
D

PE PIPE

MH IRRIG-4
STA: 46+30.97, 8.01' L

RIM: 4979.25
INV IN: 4974.10 24"(W)

INV OUT: 4974.00 24"(E)

424 LF 24" @ -1.28%

-1.02%

-1.34%

-1.09%
-1.32%

PV
I:4

5+
50

.0
0

EL
EV

: 4
98

0.
51

PV
I:4

7+
25

.0
0

EL
EV

: 4
97

8.
17

PV
I:4

8+
50

.0
0

EL
EV

: 4
97

6.
81

MH #1
STA: 47+76.39, 16.27' R
RIM: 4977.29
INV IN:4968.53 10"(N)
INV IN:4968.69 10"(S)
INV OUT:4968.33 10"(E)

127 LF OF 10"  SDR-35 PVC,  S = -6.81%

446 LF 24" @ -0.96%

PROPOSED HDPE PIPE

PROPOSED HDPE PIPE

283 LF 18" @ -0.90%

50 LF 12" @ -0.50%

STORM MH #2
STA: 47+56.33, 2.01' R
RIM: 4977.80
INV IN:4974.75 12"(S)
INV IN:4974.75 12"(N)
INV OUT:4972.75 18"(E)

N
EW

 C
AT

C
H

 B
AS

IN
 #

4
ST

A:
 4

7+
40

.7
6,

 4
9.

44
' R

G
R

AT
E 

EL
: 4

97
6.

78
IN

V 
IN

 (W
): 

49
75

.0
0

PROPOSED HDPE PIPE

PROPOSED HDPE PIPE

SU
N

SE
T 

D
R

IV
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 - 

PH
A

SE
 1

SU
N

SE
T 

D
R

IV
E 

- S
TA

. 4
4+

00
 T

O
 4

9+
00

Pl
an

 &
 P

ro
fil

e 
Sh

ee
ts

SHEET NO.

TH
IS

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T,
 A

LL
 S

O
U

R
C

E 
FI

LE
S,

AN
D

 T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 C

O
N

C
EP

TS
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, A

R
E

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
W

IL
LI

AM
 H

. S
M

IT
H

 &
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S

(W
H

S)
, A

N
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

 O
R

 U
SE

D
 IN

AN
Y 

FO
R

M
, I

N
 P

AR
T 

O
R

 W
H

O
LE

, A
SI

D
E 

FR
O

M
 T

H
IS

PR
O

JE
C

T 
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
TH

E 
W

R
IT

TE
N

 A
U

TH
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 O

F
W

H
S.

 D
IG

IT
AL

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

S 
O

F 
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

AR
E

U
TI

LI
ZE

D
 A

T 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 R

IS
K 

O
F 

TH
E 

U
SE

R
.  

O
R

IG
IN

AL
SE

AL
ED

 A
N

D
 S

IG
N

ED
 C

O
PI

ES
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

AR
E

O
N

 F
IL

E 
AT

 W
H

S 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
U

PO
N

 R
EQ

U
ES

T
FO

R
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E 
AN

D
 V

ER
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

.

0

0
SCALE IN FEET

VERT 

HORZ 20 40

5 10

EX 8" PVC WAT

EX
 1

0"
 S

S

EX 10" SS

EX - 24" IRREX - 24" IRREX - 24" IRR

EXISTING 24" IRRIGATION PIPE TO BE ABANDONED IN
PLACE, FILLED WITH 1 SACK EXCAVATABLE SLURRY
AND CAPPED AT PIPE ENDS

2

EXISTING MANHOLE TO BE ABANDONED IN PLACE,
SEE DETAIL B6, SHEET C-5063

3 22

NEW HANDICAP RAMPS, SEE DETAIL C3, SHEET
C-503, SEE SHEET I-1018

87 78

87 78

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING STORM SEWER
CATCH BASINS, MANHOLE AND PIPE - SEE
INTERSECTION SHEET I-101 FOR ADDITIONAL
ROADWAY DESIGN INFORMATION

4

4

4

16

36 2 6
TYPICAL TYPICAL

2

4 5
TYPICAL

INSTALL TRUNCATED DOMES, SEE DETAIL A4,
SHEET C-504, SEE SHEET I-1017

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CURB &
GUTTER, SEE DETAIL A1, ON SHEET C-501.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CONCRETE
SIDEWALK, SEE DETAIL B3, ON SHEET C-503.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY, SEE DETAIL A2, ON SHEET C-502.
MATCH EXISTING AT TIE IN LOCATIONS.

3

2

1

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT, SEE
TYPICAL SECTION TS1, ON SHEET C-001.4

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT,
SEE TYPICAL SECTION TS2, ON SHEET C-001.5

SAW-CUT FULL DEPTH FOR A CLEAN VERTICAL
JOINT. (CONCRETE) SAW-CUT SHALL BE MADE
AT THE CLOSEST EXISTING JOINT WHERE
POSSIBLE.

6

NOTE:
SANITARY SEWER MAIN LENGTHS AND SLOPES
ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF MANHOLES.

NOTE:
ALL MANHOLE PIPE PENETRATIONS SHALL BE
SDR-35 PVC, SEE DETAIL C6, SHEET C-506 FOR
EXISTING PIPE CONNECTIONS OUTSIDE OF
MANHOLE.

A EXISTING PIPE CONNECTION - OUTSIDE
MANHOLE - SEE DETAIL C6, SHEET C-506

B

C

EXISTING MANHOLE TO BE REMOVED IN IT'S
ENTIRETY AND DISPOSED OF OFF SITE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LINE
CONNECTION - SEE DETAIL A6, SHEET C-506
(TYPICAL OF ALL) SEE SANITARY SEWER
CONSTRUCTION NOTES, 2 THROUGH 6 ON
SHEET G-002

5

EXISTING CONCRETE ROADWAY
SURFACING (TYP)

4

4

EXISTING CONCRETE ROADWAY
SURFACING (TYP)

A

A

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MAIN, INSTALL 52 L.F. 10" PVC AT
THE SAME GRADE AS EXISTING

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING SANITARY
SEWER MAIN, INSTALL 100 L.F. 10" PVC AT
THE SAME GRADE AS EXISTING

B

SEE SHEET I-101 FOR INFORMATION
RELATED TO TRAFFIC BOX AND CONDUIT
INSTALLATION.

9

9

9

4

TYP OF 2 TYP OF 2

TYP OF 2TYP OF 2

NEW LOCATION

NEW LOCATION
NEW I.E. OUT

05
-3

1-
22

 (S
TO

R
M

 S
EW

ER
 / 

IR
R

IG
AT

IO
N

 L
IN

E 
R

EL
O

C
AT

IO
N

NEW PIPE LENGTH

NEW PIPE
LENGTH &
SLOPE

23

Fiber Optic Line
Discovered during
construction

REVISED PLANS
5-31-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA. 44+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET C-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET C-103

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA. 49+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS#6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS#7

bthoman
Callout
Fiber Optic Line Discovered during construction

bthoman
Text Box
REVISED PLANS 5-31-2022



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
TO: His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Miller – Director of Community Development 

THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt – City Administrator 

DATE: July 5th, 2022 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 22-005 – TITLE 17 ZONING DEFINITION ADDITION 

Recommendation:   The City Council adopt on Third Reading Ordinance No. 22-005, Title 
17 Zoning Definition Addition  

Background:   This definition addition was brought forth from the Planning Commission when 
City Council requested the Planning Commission provide research and recommendations 
regarding R-4 Residential zoning.  

Discussion: Adding this definition in Riverton Municipal Code will allow developers to build 
open parking structures that follow engineering and building code within the City of Riverton. 

Changes to RMC 17.05.010 Definitions 

“Open parking garage” means a Type I or Type II construction open on two or more 
sides. Use is exclusively for parking or storage of vehicles. A side is considered open when the 
total area of the distributed openings are not less than 50% of the exterior projected area. An 
engineered or standard approved foundation design is required. It is required to meet or exceed 
wind and snow loading per local design criteria. 

Planning Commission approved Ordinance No. 22-005 Title 17 Zoning Definition Addition on 
May 5th, 2022 

City Council approved Ordinance No. 22-005 Title 17 Zoning Definition Addition on June 7th, 
2022

City Council approved Ordinance No. 22-005 Title 17 Zoning Definition Addition on June 
21st, 2022

Alternatives:     In considering Ordinance 22-005, the City Council may explore the following 
alternative actions: 
1. Amend Riverton Municipal Code to add the definition for Open Parking Garage
2. Deny the request to change the Ordinance and continue to follow current practices

and codes
3. Approve the changes with amendments and/or stipulations 24



Budget Impact:  Adopting Ordinance No. 22-005 does not directly impact the current budget 

25



PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 22-005 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 “ZONING” TO REVISE CHAPTER 
17.08 “DEFINITIONS”, SECTION 17.08.010 “DEFINITIONS”, OF THE 
RIVERTON MUNICIPAL CODE, AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 
PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF RIVERTON, FREMONT 
COUNTY, WYOMING: 

Section 1. 

Title 17, Chapter 17.08 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 17.08 Definitions  

17.08.010 Definitions. 

“Open parking garage” means a Type I or Type II construction open on two or more 
sides. Use is exclusively for parking or storage of vehicles. A side is considered open when the total area 
of the distributed openings are not less than 50% of the exterior projected area. An engineered or standard 
approved foundation design is required. It is required to meet or exceed wind and snow loading per local 
design criteria. 

Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such conflict. 

Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect from its adoption and publication as required by law and the 
ordinances of the City of Riverton. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING 

PASSED ON SECOND READING 

PASSED ON THIRD READING 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _______ day of _________________ 2022. 

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

By:___________________________  
Richard P. Gard 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

ATTESTATION 

I, Kristin S. Watson, Clerk of the City of Riverton, attest that Ordinance No. 22-005 was passed, 
adopted, and approved by the Governing Body of the City of Riverton on the _____ day of 
_______ , 2022.  I further certify that the above proclamation ran at least once in the Riverton 
Ranger, a newspaper of general circulation within Riverton, Wyoming, the effective date of 
publication, and therefore the effective date of enactment being ______________________. 

____________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

June 7, 2022

June 21, 2022

26

http://qcode.us/codes/riverton/view.php?topic=2-2_44-2_44_010&frames=on


CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
TO: His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Miller – Director of Community Development 

THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt – City Administrator 

DATE: July 5th, 2022 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 22-006 – R-4 RESIDENTIAL ZONING CHANGES 

Recommendation:   The City Council adopt on Third Reading Ordinance No. 22-006, 
R-4 Residential Zoning Changes

Background:   City Council requested that the Planning Commission conduct research and 
provide insight into the R-4 Residential Zoning for the City. The Planning Commission formed 
an R-4 Committee that researched and provided options to change some R-4 zoning 
requirements. The proposal was presented in front of City Council on April 19th and the changes 
were received with positivity.  

Discussion: This ordinance is a change directly based on the R-4 Committees recommendations. 
Changes to the lot area and height and floor area are being recommended for change in the code 
to clearly define what is allowed on a lot zoned R-4. The changes recommended remove code 
that cascades into R-4 from R-1. 

Changes to RMC 17.40.020 Lot Area 

A. The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square
feet; 

B. The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000)
square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than 
two; 

C. A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and
accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and 

D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter
15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)

Changes to RMC 17.40.030 Height and floor area

A. The maximum height of any building located in a residential R-4 district must be not more
than fifty (50) feet.

27



B. The floor area of a one-family dwelling must be not less than eight hundred fifty (850)
square feet on the first floor level above the ground. The total floor area requirement may be met 
by adding together the floor area of two or more levels, if: 

1. The basement level is not more than forty-two (42) inches below the ground level; and
2. The first floor level above the ground has a floor area of not less than six hundred (600)

square feet. 
C. The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with two living units must

be a minimum of four hundred twenty-five (425) square feet with not less than four hundred 
twenty-five (425) square feet on any one level. 

D. B. The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with more than two
living units must be a minimum of three hundred (300) square feet. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 
07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 29)

1. Amend Riverton Municipal Code to reflect changes to the lot use and height and floor
requirements in an R-4 zoned area

2. Deny the request to change Riverton Municipal Code and keep the R-4 Zoning lot use and
height and floor requirements as they are

3. Approve the changes with amendments and/or stipulations

Budget Impact:  Adopting Ordinance No. 22-006 does not directly impact the current budget 

Planning Commission approved Ordinance No. 22-006 R-4 Residential Zoning Changes on 
May 5th, 2022 
City Council approved Ordinance No. 22-006 R-4 Residential Zoning Changes on June 7th, 
2022. 
City Council approved Ordinance No. 22-006 R-4 Residential Zoning Changes on June 21st, 
2022
Alternatives: 

28



Proposed Ordinance 07-011 Page 1 of 2 Enrolled Ordinance 07-011 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO 22-006 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 “ZONING”;  CHAPTER 17.40 “R-4 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT”; SECTION 17.40.020 “LOT AREA”; SECTION 
17.40.030 “HEIGHT AND FLOOR AREA” OF THE RIVERTON MUNICIPAL 
CODE, AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF RIVERTON, 
FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING: 

Section 1. 

Title 17. Chapter 17.40, Section 17.40.020, Section 17.40.030 is hereby amended to include the 
following: 

 Section 17.40.020 Lot area. 
    In a residential R-4 district: 

A. The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square
feet; 

B. The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000)
square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than 
two; 

C. A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and
accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and 

D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter
15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)

Section 17.40.030 Height and floor area. 
A. The maximum height of any building located in a residential R-4 district must be not more

than fifty (50) feet. 
B. The floor area of a one-family dwelling must be not less than eight hundred fifty (850)

square feet on the first floor level above the ground. The total floor area requirement may be met 
by adding together the floor area of two or more levels, if: 

1. The basement level is not more than forty-two (42) inches below the ground level; and
2. The first floor level above the ground has a floor area of not less than six hundred (600)

square feet. 
C. The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with two living units must

be a minimum of four hundred twenty-five (425) square feet with not less than four hundred 
twenty-five (425) square feet on any one level. 

D. B. The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with more than two
living units must be a minimum of three hundred (300) square feet. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 
07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 29)

Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication 
as required by law and ordinances of the City of Riverton. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING June 7, 2022

29



Proposed Ordinance 07-011 Page 2 of 2 Enrolled Ordinance 07-011 

PASSED ON SECOND READING 

PASSED ON THIRD READING 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _______ day of _________________ 2022. 

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

By:___________________________  
Richard P. Gard 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

ATTESTATION 

I, Kristin S. Watson, Clerk of the City of Riverton, attest that Ordinance No. 22-006 was passed, 
adopted, and approved by the Governing Body of the City of Riverton on the _____ day of _______ , 
2022.  I further certify that the above proclamation ran at least once in the Riverton Ranger, a 
newspaper of general circulation within Riverton, Wyoming, the effective date of publication, and 
therefore the effective date of enactment being ______________________. 

____________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

June 21,  2022

30



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Mia Harris, Finance Director 
 
THROUGH:  Tony Tolstedt, City Administrator 
 
DATE: July 5, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Participation in the Wyoming CLASS Investment Pool 

 
 
Recommendation:  That the Council approves Resolution No. 1451 authorizing participation by 
the City of Riverton in the Wyoming CLASS Investment Pool and designating the fund's 
custodian bank as a depository of the funds of this political subdivision. 
 
 
Background:  According to the requirements of W.S. Section 9-4-831 and the City of Riverton 
Statement of Investment Policy, the governing body shall authorize officers or agents of the City 
to engage in activities with designated investment programs and, by resolution, name its 
custodian bank as an official depository for the account transactions of City funds including 
Reserve Capital and Endowment Funds. 
 
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City of Riverton investment activities shall be 
safety, liquidity, return on investment, and community investment. 
 
The Wyoming Cooperative Liquid Asset Securities System (CLASS) was organized in 2020 
under the laws of the State of Wyoming. The fund provides cash-management investments 
designed exclusively for Wyoming public entities, with its primary objective focused on the 
safety of public funds. 
 
Discussion:  The City currently participates in the state-approved WyoStar and Wyoming 
Government Investment Fund. It is management's responsibility to conduct periodic reviews of 
the City's investments to ensure compliance with investment objectives, internal controls, reserve 
requirements, and fund diversification. Currently, most of the City's investment assets are held 
with WyoStar and a minimal amount in the Wyoming Government Investment Fund. The staff is 
seeking the approval of Resolution No. 1451 to participate in the Wyoming CLASS Investment 
Pool.   
 
Alternatives:   

• Deny the request 
 
Budget Impact:  Potential higher rates of returns on investments 
 

31



Council Goal: #1 Promote Communication/Transparency 
 #6 Maintain Financial Stability 

32



RESOLUTION NO. 1451 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF RIVERTON TO JOIN 
WITH OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS OF THE STATE OF 
WYOMING AS A PARTICIPANT (“PARTICIPANT”) IN THE WYOMING 
COOPERATIVE LIQUID ASSET SECURITIES SYSTEM “WYOMING 
CLASS” (THE “TRUST”) TO POOL FUNDS FOR INVESTMENT. 

WHEREAS, W.S. 9-4-831 authorizes political subdivisions of the state of Wyoming as defined 
therein under W.S. 9-4-831(a) (“Political Subdivisions”) to invest in eligible securities as defined 
in W.S. 9-4-831(“Legal Investments”); and 

WHEREAS, W.S. 9-4-831(a)(viii) authorizes Political Subdivisions to invest jointly with other 
investors in a commingled fund of Legal Investments; and 

WHEREAS, the Trust is a statutory trust formed under the laws of the state of Wyoming in 
accordance with W.S. 17-23-114 and it is the intent and purpose of the Trust to provide for the 
investment in only those Legal Investments for Political Subdivisions in accordance with W.S. 9-
4-831; and

WHEREAS, U.S. Bank National Association is custodian for the Trust (“Custodian”) and all 
eligible securities of the Trust are held through the Custodian; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the Participants to permit their respective cash balances to be 
invested in the Trust; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Riverton, a Political Subdivision, desires to become a Participant in the 
Trust. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING: 

SECTION 1: Authorization. Hereby approves, adopts, and thereby joins as a Participant with 
other Political Subdivisions pursuant to the Wyoming CLASS Indenture of Trust dated May 29, 
2020, as amended from time-to-time, the terms of which are incorporated herein by this reference 
and a copy of which shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting at which this Resolution was 
adopted 

SECTION 2: Designation of Depository. The Custodian, acting as a depository, is hereby 
designated as a depository for the funds of this Political Subdivision which shall be invested in the 
Trust on behalf of its general fund and all other accounts, and the Finance Director is directed and 
authorized to execute any and all depository forms and resolutions of said Custodian, and that said 
resolutions are adopted as reflected thereon. The application of U.S. Bank National Association to 
become a depository is hereby accepted. 

SECTION 3: Authorized Officers/Agents. If so designated below, each of the officers or agents 
of this Political Subdivision listed in this Section 3 is hereby authorized for and on behalf of this 
Political Subdivision to direct the investment of such Participants’ investment funds and to take 
all such actions deemed necessary or desirable to carry out the activities otherwise authorized by 
this Resolution, subject to the Authorized Signatories’ obligation to take such actions only in the 
name of and for the benefit of this Participant. 

NAME  TITLE SIGNATURE 

Richard P. Gard Mayor  

Michael V. Bailey Council President 

Anthony Tolstedt City Administrator 

Kristin S. Watson City Clerk 

33



Mia Harris Finance Director 

The Authorized Officers/Agents may be changed from time-to-time by written notice to 
Wyoming CLASS. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 5th day of July 2022. 

CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

By: 
Richard P. Gard 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

34



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Kyle J. Butterfield, Public Works Director 
 
THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt, City Administrator 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 1452 – Transportation Alternative Program Grant Application 
 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council approves Resolution No. 1452 supporting a Transportation 
Alternative Program (TAP) grant application to the Wyoming Department of Transportation (WYDOT) 
for pedestrian, safety, and drainage improvement in the area of Willow Creek Elementary School. 
 
Background:  WYDOT receives federal monies for the support of community-based projects that expand 
travel choices and enhance the transportation experience by integrating modes and improving the cultural, 
historic, and environmental aspects of our transportation infrastructure.  Projects include the creation of 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities, streetscape improvements, refurbishment of historic transportation 
facilities, and other investments that enhance communities, connections, and access. Funding for TAP 
comes through federal-aid highway transportation legislation. 
 
Discussion:   Willow Creek Elementary School teaches children from first to third grade and was 
constructed in 2015. Prior to its completion, the School Facilities Commission invested in the extension 
of West Monroe Avenue and addition of South Major Avenue. This served to connect the new school to 
Riverview Road and provided necessary vehicular ingress and egress for the area.  However, due to 
budget restrictions, sidewalks were pulled from the original design of the project and were not included 
along the new roads. Children and pedestrians currently utilize the shoulder of the paved roadway when 
approaching the school from the north and west. 
 
Traffic at the intersection of South Major Avenue and Riverview Road has increased after the addition of 
Willow Creek Elementary. This is particularly true during the morning rush hour when students are 
driven to school. The intersection is narrow, congests with vehicles making left turn movements, and does 
not accommodate pedestrians on its south side. It further does not comply with ADA provisions, nor does 
it have crosswalk accommodations. 
 
The City is soliciting grant funds from TAP to install sidewalks directly adjacent to Willow Creek 
Elementary School and along the western pedestrian route to and from the school where none currently 
exist. It also improves pedestrian facilities at the intersection of Riverview Road and South Major 
Avenue. 
 
Budget Impact:  2023 TAP projects are funded at a ratio of 90.5:9.5.  The anticipated budget for the 
improvements is $800,000.  TAP would fund $723,920 and the city would be required to cover $76,080.     

35



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1452 
 

A  RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
RIVERTON AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A TRANSPORTATION 
ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM GRANT TO THE WYOMING DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION TO IMPROVE PEDESTRIAN ACCOMODATIONS 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE IN THE AREA OF WILLOW CREEK 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to participate in the Transportation Alternative Program to 
assist in funding a safe routes to school project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the need for this project; and 

WHEREAS, the Wyoming Department of Transportation receives federal monies for the 
support of community-based projects that expand travel choices and enhance the transportation 
experience by integrating modes and improving the cultural, historic, and environmental aspects 
of our transportation infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the Wyoming Department of Transportation administers the above referenced 
funds and improvement projects through the Transportation Alternative Program; and 

WHEREAS, projects approved through the 2023 Transportation Alternative Program are funded 
with grant monies at a ratio of 90.49:9.51; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Riverton acknowledges that if funded, the project shall be completed 
before December 31, 2025 

WHEREAS, the City of Riverton agrees to incorporate and follow the consultant selection 
practices of the Wyoming Department of Transportation in addition to the practices outlined in 
the city’s Professional Services Selection Policy, and  

WHEREAS, the City of Riverton is capable to provide the amount of funding specified in the 
application’s funding plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF RIVERTON, WYOMING that a grant application be submitted to the Wyoming 
Department of Transportation’s Transportation Alternative Program grant program to assist in 
funding the installation of pedestrian accommodations and infrastructure in the area of Willow 
Creek Elementary School. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Finance Director 
are hereby designated as authorized representatives of the City of Riverton on all matters relating 
to this grant application. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Riverton, 
Wyoming, this 5th day of July, 2022. 
 
 

 
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 
 
 
      
Richard P. Gard 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

36


	1 07-05-22 Regular Council Meeting
	1) Call to order.
	2) Pledge of Allegiance.
	3) Invocation.
	4) Roll call: Ward I: Kyle Larson, Dean Peranteaux
	Ward II: Karla Borders, Kristy K. Salisbury
	Ward III: Mike Bailey, Lindsey Cox

	8.2 06-21-2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes_kw
	8.3 06-28-2022 Special Council Meeting Minutes_kw
	8.5 Livestock Liquors_OC 07-15-2022
	8.6 Bar Ten_OC 07-15-2022
	9 2022_7.5_CO No 1 for Sunset Drive Improvement Project
	ADPB84D.tmp
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council



	10 22.005 Zoning Definition
	Memo -Title 17 Zoning Definition
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	22-005 Amending Title 17 Zoning Definition
	Section 1.


	11 22.006 R4 Zoning Change
	Memo -R-4 Residential Zoninh
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council
	A.  The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet;
	B.   The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than two;
	C.  A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and
	D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter 15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)



	22-006 Proposed Ord R4 Residential Zone revisions
	Title 17. Chapter 17.40, Section 17.40.020, Section 17.40.030 is hereby amended to include the following:
	In a residential R-4 district:
	A.  The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet;
	B.   The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than two;
	C.  A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and
	D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter 15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)



	12 City Council Staff Report 7-5-22 Wyoming Class
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	13 2022_7.1_TAP Grant Application - Willowcreek
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council





